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The 2017/2018 Annual Report of the Kimberley Development Commission has been compiled in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2018-01 Annual Reporting, the Public Sector
Commission’s Annual Reporting Framework for the 2017/2018 Reporting Year, Treasurer’s Instructions, relevant
Legislation and Government policy.

1 Overview
Executive Summary
With the announcement of the Machinery of Government (MOG) changes in late
2016/2017 and the establishment of the Department of Primary Industries and Regional
Development (DPIRD) on 1 July 2017, the Commission prepared for an extraordinary
year ahead and embraced the need to be responsive, flexible and innovative. Above all
it committed to providing a high level of service delivery and maintaining a high level of
integrity and credibility both with Government and in the Kimberley region.
Subsequent to the MOG changes the Commission, with the eight other Regional
Development Commissions of Western Australia, has remained a separate entity, that is
a Statutory Authority established under the Regional Development Commission’s Act
1993. However, effective 1 July 2017, the MOG changes have resulted in the
employment of its small staff complement being transitioned to the Industry and
Economic pillar of DPIRD and changes to the funding arrangements of the Commission.
The Commission’s access to resources has been divided into two components. The first
comprises those reported under Section 40 of the Financial Management Act 2006 that
is; funds allocated to cover the expenses and operations of the Board and Chief
Executive of the Commission including grants programs. The second is the DPIRD
controlled budget covering the staff, assets and operations transferred to DPIRD as a
result of the MOG changes and provided for the day to day management of the Chief
Executive under agreement with the DPIRD Director General.
As included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, DPIRD has provided
resources free of charge to the Commission for the 2017/2018 year to the value of
$1,333,756.31. These resources have included the DPIRD staff based with the
Commission which have been essential to enable the Commission to meet its
responsibilities.
As a result of the MOG changes the Department of Treasury has advised that the
Commission no longer requires a Resource Agreement. To ensure compliance with
Treasurer’s Instructions 904 and 903(8), the Commission has maintained its key
performance indicators (efficiency and effectiveness) to clearly measure its performance
and allow comparison with that of previous years. Readers should note that this
approach includes the contribution and hours worked of DPIRD employees that are
based with the Commission.
To clarify and formalise the Commission’s management responsibilities in respect of the
above changes, the Commission’s Chief Executive and the Director General DPIRD
signed a Memorandum of Understanding.
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Against this backdrop of change, the Commission has prioritised an extensive range of
regional development initiatives including facilitating the redevelopment of Broome’s
ChinaTown; investigating the regional potential of the Biodiscovery and Native Food
Industry; partnering with the Department of Primary Industries and Regional
Development to increase the Local Content of Government contracts, progress sealing
of the Dampier Peninsula road and economic development in that area and exploring
new cropping options.
The Commission has also worked to support major industry investors; Northern
Minerals Limited in the development of its rare earth Browns Range Project; the
international company Airbus in choosing to base its Zephyr High Altitude Pseudo
Satellite in Wyndham and with other potential investors to secure major projects for
example the global scale Sea Farms Sea Dragon prawn aquaculture project.
To underpin its regional service delivery the Commission has strived to maintain a high
level of governance and corporate management. It has met or surpassed (within an
acceptable statistical margin of error) its key performance indicator targets for
effectiveness and efficiency. For the second consecutive year, the Commission has
achieved an Internal Audit rating of A-.
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The Kimberley Region
Characterised by its young cross-cultural population, spectacular natural environment
and sub-tropical climate, the Kimberley is Western Australia’s most northerly and most
remote region and is twice the size of Victoria. These attributes underpin six small
towns and 160 Aboriginal Communities, established industries in agriculture, tourism
and resources and a diverse base of small business.
As the Kimberley develops, its regional community of 38,800, comprising almost 42%
Aboriginal people, is committed to working collaboratively to realise the regions potential
and overcome challenges that include socio-economic disparity between cultures and
the region’s distance from major centres and markets and between settlements.
Tourism attracts visitors of all age ranges to the region and includes niche markets in
cultural and eco tourism that have significant potential for further development. The
majority of visitors are from intrastate (59%) with interstate and overseas visitors
comprising 31% and 10% respectively (Tourism WA 2017).
Agriculture is currently the main industry in the region contributing $206 million (2017) to
the regional domestic product and providing long term employment and business
opportunities. The Ord River Irrigation Area based on the expansive Lake Argyle,
comprises 21,100 hectares of irrigated agricultural land which when recent land
releases have been developed will increase the size of the Ord Irrigation Scheme Area
to 35,000 hectares. The area currently supports a range of high value grain crops,
tropical horticulture and Indian Sandalwood plantations. Developments in the West
Kimberley include horticultural enterprises for example Skuthorpe (680 hectares) near
Broome and centre pivot irrigation projects, for example Mowanjum (38 hectares) near
Derby. Research for new cropping options is being progressed in the Ord River
Irrigation Area and the biodiscovery and Native food industry already established in the
West Kimberley holds significant potential.
The Pearling Industry, for which Broome is famous, is diversifying to include tourism
and research to overcome the challenges of low cost Asian competition and biological
threats. Marine science, research and education, similarly to the Pastoral Industry offers
significant opportunities for Traditional Owners to participate in the mainstream
economy and contribute their knowledge and understanding.
The Resource Sector continues to make a significant contribution to the Gross Regional
product, $356 million in 2016-2017, despite changing commodity prices and largely
because of the continuing underground operations at Argyle Diamond Mine which
contributed $268 million.
Importantly and in short: the Kimberley is embracing a future of diversification.
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Operational Structure
This section includes the Commission’s legislative base, responsible Minister,
organisational structure and Board Member profiles.
As part of the Machinery of Government (MOG) changes, on 1 July 2017, further to the
deputy of the Governor in Executive Council’s approval, the Department of Primary
Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) was established by amalgamating the
former Departments of Regional Development, Agriculture and Food and Fisheries.
In accordance with the Public Sector Management Act 1994, Section 22B, the Public
Sector Commission gave effect, also on 1 July 2017, to the disposition of offices
(positions) and public sector employees from the Kimberley Development Commission
to DPIRD. The Chief Executive remains an employee of the Kimberley Development
Commission in accordance with the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993.
Within the new Public Sector structure and with the establishment of the Department of
Primary Industries and Regional Development, the Kimberley Development
Commission, similarly to other Regional Development Commissions, has remained a
separate entity and Statutory Authority. During the continuing period of Public Sector
renewal, the Commission remains committed to ensuring that change management
supports a continued high level of service to the Kimberley region.

Enabling Legislation
The Commission is a Western Australian Statutory Authority that was established under
the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993 (as amended) and is subject to the
provisions of the Public Sector Management Act 1994.

Statutory Objectives and Functions
The objectives of the Kimberley Development Commission, as defined in Section 23 (1)
of the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993, are to:
 maximise job creation and improve career opportunities in the region;
 develop and broaden the economic base of the region;
 identify infrastructure services to promote economic and social development
within the region;
 provide information and advice to promote business development within the
region;
 seek to ensure that the general standard of government services and access to
those services in the region is comparable to that which applies in the
metropolitan area; and
 generally take steps to encourage, promote, facilitate and monitor the economic
development in the region.
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Responsible Minister
The Commission is responsible to the Hon Alannah MacTiernan MLC BA, LLB, BJuris,
JP Minister for Regional Development; Agriculture and Food; Minister Assisting the
Minister for State Development, Jobs and Trade.
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Reporting Structure
As an accountable authority, the Commission advises the Minister on matters affecting
the development of the region and its Board sets the strategic directions for the
Commission.

Parliament

Minister for Regional Development; Agriculture and Food;
Minister Assisting the Minister for State Development,
Jobs and Trade

The Kimberley Development Commission
Board
Chief Executive
KDC Advisory Committees (appointed as required)

Supported by
Department of Primary Industries and
Regional Development Staff

Procured
External
Assistance

Assistance of
Other
Government
Agencies
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Administration
Officer
L3 - 0.6 FTE
Manager, People &
Place
L6 -1.0 FTE

The Board

Manager, Research,
Analysis & Economics
L6 – 1.0 FTE

Customer Service
Officer
L2 - 1.0 FTE

Manager, Industry
& Infrastructure
L6 - 1.0 FTE

Director, Strategic
Planning & Projects
Delivery
L8 – 0.4 FTE

Manager, Research,
Analysis & Economics
L6 - 1.0 FTE

Director, Regional
Planning & Projects
Delivery
L8 -1.0 FTE

Chief Executive

Regional
Information
Services Officer
Officer L5 -1.0 FTE

Director, Strategic
Planning & Projects
Delivery
L8 - 1.0 FTE

Organisational Chart – Staff

Grants & Projects
Officer
L4 - 1.0 FTE
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Legend
Other than the Chief
Executive, KDC based
staff are employed by
DPIRD

Board Profiles
Consistent with the Regional Development Commission’s Act 1993 and the Regional
Development Commissions Amendment Regulations 2017, the Kimberley Development
Commission’s Board, which is appointed by the Minister, comprises:
 two members representing the regional community;
 two members representing Local Government;
 two members appointed at the Minister’s discretion; and
 the Kimberley Development Commission’s Chief Executive.
The Members of the Board at 30 June 2018 were:
Mr Michael McConachy, Chairperson
Ministerial representative – appointed 2015 – term expires 2018
Profile
Mr McConachy moved to the Kimberley in 2009 with his
family, bringing a wealth of business and leadership
experience with him in the areas of; tourism, agriculture,
construction and aviation.
As a Managing Director of several local Companies, including:
Helicopter Film Services Pty Ltd trading as HeliSpirit,
Kimberley Cultural Tours Pty Ltd, Bungle Bungle Holdings Pty
Ltd, Freshwater Quality Management Pty Ltd, of which he is
also Owner, Kimberley Land Holdings Pty Ltd, H.M. Developments Pty Ltd and Top End
Building Company, he has a strong understanding of governance and accountability. He
has used this in a voluntary capacity as a founding Committee Member and
Chairperson of the East Kimberley Marketing Group. Mr McConachy is also a past
President, St Joseph’s School Council, Kununurra.
Since 1999, Mr McConachy has been Owner/Managing Director, Agrivision
International Pty Ltd and Managing Director, Integrated Dairies of Australia Pty Ltd.
Prior to this he worked as; an Agricultural Consultant, Riverina F.A.R.M (Financial and
Rural Management), Farm Manager, Strathfieldsaye Estate (University of Melbourne)
and General Manager, International Agribusiness Australia.
Mr McConachy is committed to regional development of the Kimberley in partnership
with regional stakeholders and in recognition of its potential.
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Mr Ian Trust, Deputy Chairperson
Community representative – reappointed 2015 - term expires 2018
Profile
Mr Trust has an extensive background in Aboriginal affairs and management in the East
Kimberley. His former positions include Administrator, East Kimberley Aboriginal
Medical Services (now Ord Valley Aboriginal Health Services), Chairperson Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Commission, Wunan Regional Council and later WA Commissioner Kimberley Region.
He is currently Deputy Chairperson of the Kimberley Development Commission,
Executive Chairman of Wunan Foundation and Chairman of the Western Australian
Aboriginal Advisory Council.
Mr Trust believes the basis of any region is a strong economy and access to regional
opportunities. To enable people to access opportunity, affordable housing and a good
quality education are critical. He believes a measure of the success of government
policy and funding in the Kimberley is the social and economic advancement of
Aboriginal people in the region.
Mr Robert Boshammer, Member
Ministerial representative - reappointed 2016 - term expires 2018
Profile

Mr Boshammer has been a prominent and leading Ord
River Irrigation Area grower for over 30 years. He has a
development and equity position in a number of
associated businesses including nurseries, forestry
management services, tourism, produce marketing and
irrigation and pastoral business development and
describes his passion as the empowerment of people in
regional areas to facilitate world-class business
development.
Mr Boshammer’s preferences for development in the Kimberley focus on increasing
local decision making and decision making by Indigenous people with ‘less control and
rubber stamping’ from above and streamlined bureaucratic processes that allow small
business and communities to develop and ‘have a go’. He would also like to see
increased availability of affordable living blocks in support of people that wish to live
permanently in the region.
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He considers his potential contribution to the Board includes expertise in small
business, management and development and an ability to identify and articulate major
hurdles holding back business development. Rob believes that small business is most
attuned to people and worker’s needs, in particular Indigenous people.
Ms Eunice Yu
Ministerial representative – reappointed 2016 - term expires 2018
Profile
Ms Yu is a Yawuru person currently employed by the Yawuru
Jarndu Aboriginal Corporation in Broome.
Ms Yu’s preferences for development in the Kimberley are for all
residents to benefit economically, socially and culturally with
development decisions being made at a local / regional level and
based on inclusive engagement of relevant stakeholders and at a
cross-sectoral level. Places that are valued by the Community
should be protected and the region promoted and celebrated.
Contribution to the Board includes personal attributes of level
headedness, integrity, loyalty, honesty and accountability, an
Indigenous woman’s perspective and views, networks and linkages with engagement
opportunities and stakeholders. Ms Yu’s community profile is gained through
employment, volunteering and representation. Most recently she has been developing
her research and analytic thinking and strategic policy development skills which
enhances her contribution.
Ms Yu considers the State’s changing demography, Native Title determinations,
displacement of community members and associated impact on communities,
subsequent service delivery pressures and the need for balanced economic social and
cultural imperatives with appropriate access to resources, as key issues.
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Mr James Brown, Member
Community representative – appointed 2016 - term expires 2019
Profile
Mr Brown is a long term resident of the Kimberley, based at
Cygnet Bay. He holds a Bachelor of Science, Marine Biology
and has retail, business and tourism experience gained from
working in the pearling industry since 2000. He is the Managing
Director of Cygnet Bay Pearls and the founder/lead field
scientist of the Kimberley Marine Research Station (KMRS)
that encourages and facilitate broad scale independent marine
research on the Kimberley Coast and has contributed to the
Kimberley Conservation and Science Strategy and the
establishment of the Kimberley Aquaculture Zone. He is a
Board Member of the Broome Visitors Centre, Chairman of the Broome Tourism
Leadership Group, Board Member, Broome Shire Economic Development Advisory
Committee and an active member of several Pearling and Fisheries Associations. He is
also an Ambassador for WA Save the Children.
Mr Brown offers strong leadership and experience gained from his involvement in his
family’s pearling business and from his active involvement in the broader pearling and
tourism industries and community. He is committed to economic development in the
Kimberley, driven through strategies created and embraced by the people of the
Kimberley.
Mr Jeff Gooding – Member, Ex Officio
Chief Executive
Profile
Mr Gooding has held the position of Chief Executive of the
Kimberley Development Commission since the Commission’s
establishment and is a Member of the Board of the Commission.
He is a long term resident of Kununurra and the Kimberley, has
qualifications in town and regional planning, is a graduate and
fellow of the Australian Rural Leadership Foundation, Member of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors and is Justice of the
Peace and former Shire Councillor.
Having participated in the negotiation process which culminated in
several key Native Title Agreements, Mr Gooding continues to be
substantially involved in related implementation including as a
Director of the Miriuwung Gajerrong Community Foundation. He has been closely
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involved in the development, and initial implementation, of the Ord/East Kimberley
Expansion Project and associated Land Releases.
Other regional roles include membership of a range of Regional Planning processes
and Chairman or member of various regional steering and coordinating groups,
including the Northwest Aboriginal Housing Steering Committee, The Kimberley
Schools Project Regional Leadership Group, The Broome Growth Planning Partnership
and Chinatown Revitalisation Steering Committee.
In the last year, as a Member of the Land Tenure Reform Steering Committee and the
Aboriginal Pastoral Industry Participation project, he has contributed to the development
of a policy framework that will help maximise the participation of Aboriginal people in the
regional pastoral industry and related new industries.

Advisory Committees
The Board is empowered to appoint advisory committees to assist in providing specialist
advice to the Board. These committees which are established on a needs basis,
currently include the Risk Management and Audit Sub-Committee and the Kimberley
Aviation Tourism Development Committee.

Senior Officers
Mr Jeff Gooding, PSM, Assoc. T&RP, JP, Chief Executive
Mr Gooding has a background in planning and extensive regional development and
leadership experience gained through the WA Public Sector and involvement with
regional industry and community.
Mr Tim Bray, BSc. B. Comm. (Hons), Director, Regional Planning & Projects
Delivery
Mr Bray has extensive experience in business, finance, and project management in the
private and public sector. He has worked in regional development in the Kimberley for
ten years.
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Legislation impacting on the Commission’s Activities
In performing its regional development functions, the Commission has complied with the
following legislation:
 Regional Development Commissions Act 1993
 Public Sector Management Act 1994
 Financial Management Act 2006
 Auditor General Act 2003
 Royalties for Regions Act 2009
 Contaminated Sites Act 2003
 Disability Services Act 1993
 Equal Opportunity Act 1984
 Freedom of Information Act 1992
 Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986
 Government Employees Housing Act 1964
 Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987
 Industrial Relations Act 1979
 Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
 Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
 State Records Act 2000
 State Supply Commission Act 1991
 Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
 Legal Deposit Act 2012
The Commission also exercises controls which provide reasonable assurance that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of monies, the acquisition and disposal of public
property and incurring of liabilities are in accordance with legislative provisions.
At the date of signing this Annual Report, the Commission is not aware of any
circumstances that would render the particulars included in this statement misleading or
inaccurate.

Page 14

Performance Management Framework
Outcome Based Management Framework
The Commission’s Performance Management Framework comprises its Statutory
Objectives described in the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993 and outlined
earlier and the Government of Western Australia’s Goals.
The Machinery of Government changes and the consequent establishment of the
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) have included
changes to the way in which the Commission is funded. Since 1 July 2017 the
Commission’s Board and Chief Executive have received funding via DPIRD eliminating
the need for a Resource Agreement as previously required.
The Commission remains committed to achieving Government’s Goals and its Desired
Outcome through the delivery of two high level services/result areas and in the absence
a Resource Agreement containing agreed targets, the Commission has retained its
former high level targets for efficiency and effectiveness.
Government’s Goals


Sustainable Finances:
Responsible financial management and better service delivery.



Future Jobs and Skills:
Grow and diversify the economy, create jobs and support skills development.



Strong Communities:
Safe communities and supported families.



Better Places:
A quality environment with liveable and affordable communities and vibrant
regions.
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Kimberley Development Commission’s Desired Outcome and Service Areas
Desired Outcome

An environment conducive to the balanced economic and social development of the
Kimberley region.
Service 1
The Commission will provide effective
regional
development
policies
and
strategies together with accurate and
accessible information on the region to
facilitate and support the economic and
social development of the region.

Service 2
The Commission will identify, co-ordinate
and promote through its major strategies
the establishment, improvement and
diversification of the region’s infrastructure,
industries and enterprises.

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework
As described above and advised by Treasury, the Commission’s Outcome Based
Management Framework has changed in 2017/2018 given that there is no longer a
requirement for it to have, or for its Accountable Authority to be signatory to, a resource
agreement with the Minister and Treasurer.

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies
In accordance with the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993 Part 2 Division 2
section 23 clause (1) (e) the Commission has responsibilities: “to ensure that the
general standard of government services and access to those services in the region is
comparable to that which applies in the metropolitan area”.
The majority of the Commission’s regional development work involves facilitating
outcomes for the region in partnership with other Government and non Government
organisations. This includes conceptualising initiatives and working with other larger
Government agencies to implement them. Two major strategic initiatives exemplify this
approach; the Kimberley Schools Project and the North West Aboriginal Housing
project. Both designed to advance Aboriginal people in the region. The Departments of
Education and Housing are now responsible for implementing these projects, however,
the Commission continues to play a key role on the Steering Committees for both
projects.
The Commission has also continued to partner LandCorp and the Shire of Broome in
the Broome ChinaTown revitalisation project, contribute to the Regional Services
Reforms in partnership with the Department of Communities and provide input to the
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establishment of the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development and
its relationship with the Regional Development Commissions.
A key partner continues to be the Pilbara Development Commission which also covers
an expansive northerly location, remote from Perth and with a high Aboriginal
population.
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2 Agency Performance
Report on Operations
In early 2017/2018 the Commission reprioritised its workload to facilitate and/or
implement strategic projects that were informed by Government’s Election
commitments, new priorities in the Kimberley and successes achieved in 2016/2017. It
also continued to support the implementation of a range of medium sized projects that
would increase regional capabilities and capacity. This section summaries those
initiatives.

Strategic Project Development (Government Priorities)
Land Tenure Pastoral Reforms
The Minister for Regional Development has responsibility for leading land tenure
pastoral reforms to improve the economic viability and ecological management of the
pastoral estate in Western Australia. At the request of the Minister, the Commission’s
Chief Executive has been appointed as Chair of the Aboriginal Pastoral Industry
Participation Working Group. At an inaugural forum, coordinated by the Commission
and hosted by the Minister and Nyamba Buru Yawuru, the group began work with the
thirty-nine Aboriginal Pastoral Leaseholders in the Kimberley to create an awareness of
available support mechanisms, facilitate business model development and overcome
operational issues.
Industry Diversification and Innovation
In the Ord River Irrigation Area, the Commission is partnering the Mirriuwung Gajerrong
Corporation and Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development Joint
Venture Industrial Hemp Demonstration Trial. The Hemp will be grown locally and
processed for building materials in a trial coordinated by MG Corp in the south of the
State.
Towards encouraging industry diversification and innovation, the Commission has
investigated the current situation and potential in the Kimberley for the Biodiscovery and
Native Food Industry and prepared a case study on the Gubinge Industry on the
Dampier Peninsula to illustrate considerations and successes to date. The Commission
has also supported the implementation of the Government’s $16.7 million Regional New
Industries Fund ($300,000 for each region with a further $1.4million for inter-regional
projects available over four years) by establishing the Kimberley innovation Partnership
that will guide the identification of projects for regional funding. An inter-regional
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proposal to support the development of the WA Rock Oyster Aquaculture is being
developed by the Commission in partnership with the Pilbara Development
Commission.
The Kimberley Schools Project
Following the success in securing $25 million funding over four years for the
implementation of the Kimberley Schools Project (KSP) which it conceptualised, the
Commission has this year, continued to play a key role in the Project which is now being
implemented by the Department of Education. Inclusive of the three educational
systems; the Department of Education, the Association of Independent Schools WA and
Catholic Education WA in response to the low educational outcomes in the Kimberley,
this project is designed to accelerate and intensify existing strategies to address this
challenge and so underpin broader economic and social development in the region.
The project is providing funding support for up to twenty-two schools across the three
systems that opt-in to the project across four key components:
 Transformational Target teaching
 Early Years Learning and Care
 Engagement and attendance
 Connecting, community, school and learning
Ten Schools have now opted in and a further eleven are under consideration for
engagement with KSP in 2019 with candidate Schools becoming key advocates for
other Schools to opt in.
The North West Aboriginal Housing Fund
The North West Aboriginal Housing Fund (NWAHF) which the Commission also
conceptualised and for which it was also successful in securing funding in 2017/2018 in
partnership with the Regional Services Reform Unit ($200 million over four years) is
now being implemented by the lead agency for housing; the Department of
Communities. The Commission is represented on the Steering Committee by its Chief
Executive and continues to have significant input in terms of the Kimberley’s
requirements and attributes including the requirement to build the houses to a higher
than social housing specification. To date the fund has supported the construction of
fifty additional transitional houses in the East Kimberley following the successes of
inaugural transitional housing programs in the area developed by various partnerships
between the Commission, Wunan and the former Department of Housing (now the
Department of Communities). The NWAHF has moved its focus to the Pilbara variant of
the transitional housing concept which seeks an allocation of $18.02 million from the
fund.
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Local Content
Increasing the local content and local jobs arising from Government expenditure was a
key Election commitment. In late 2016/2017, the Commission designated one of its
DPIRD employees as a Local Content Officer. More recently, a dedicated Local Content
Advisor has also joined the Commission’s team. A collaborative approach with the
Chambers of Commerce and Industry to building Business awareness in and capacity
to respond to government tenders across the region is well underway. This partnership
is also assisting government agencies reconsider their approaches to procurement in
the region with over 50% of government suppliers to the Kimberley being Kimberley
businesses.
Major Development Initiatives
Major development initiatives in the West Kimberley have included finalising the Broome
Growth Plan, refining plans for the redevelopment of Broome’s ChinaTown and the
sealing of the Dampier Peninsula Road. All three have involved a significant and
ongoing commitment of the Commission in partnership with various key stakeholders.
The Commission, Nyamba Buru Yawuru, LandCorp and the Shire of Broome have
agreed that the Broome Growth Plan and the underlying foundations it establishes for a
constructive positive partnership, are important contributions to a sustainable
development agenda for Broome. As an integral component of the plan, the
redevelopment of ChinaTown comprises Public Realm Projects which have reached
construction or tender stage and the development of an aspirational Kimberley Centre
which will embody the Kimberley Culture and Art Story. The Commission has also
worked with State Government and regional Stakeholder project partners to develop the
concept and complete the business case for the sealing of the Dampier Peninsula Road
($12.5 million State and $52.5million Commonwealth commitments) as a sub-section of
the Northern Jobs, Tourism and Parks initiative that aggregates many current Election
commitments. Since March 2018, the Commission has also provided a regional
perspective in the consultation stages of the Government’s commitments in relation to
the Fitzroy River and its catchments (one of the Kimberley’s six major river catchments
with a contentious development history).

Regional Leadership & Development Readiness
In all that it has progressed during the year the Commission has sought to maintain a
high standard of governance, integrity and leadership. It has strived to act as a role
model in the region and imbue high standards to organisations as it engages with them
in a wide range of initiatives including major strategic projects, progressing grant funded
projects, providing advice and regional information. This work has included providing
support and regional information to the production of the recently screened Mystery
Road television series filmed in the second half of the year in Wyndham and Kununurra.
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Simultaneously, the Commission has worked at a high level with Government to ensure
that the Machinery of Government changes realise improved Government services to
the Kimberley.

Enhancing the Capability Services Sector
Much of the Commission’s work during the year has involved working with various
stakeholders to overcome challenges and expedite outcomes. This has included
maximising the benefit of initiatives, for example the sealing of the Dampier Peninsula
Road that has the potential to yield a range of socio-economic outcomes in Aboriginal
Advancement, Tourism and the Pearling Industry. Similarly, its involvement in the
ChinaTown revitalisation project has the potential to yield a range of benefits for the
Broome Community including increasing the liveability and attractions of the town.

Aboriginal Advancement
Over the years the Commission has adopted a highly respectful two way learning
approach to considering and involving Aboriginal people in its regional development
initiatives. This is especially reflected in its major strategic projects, a myriad of smaller
projects for which it has facilitated funding and local coordination of the Governor of
Western Australia’s, Ministerial and other VIP visits to the region. It also advocates to
Government to ensure that high level government policy is considerate of the
Kimberley’s demographics.
The Commission contributes to Aboriginal skills development and employment by
presenting a persuasive case to regional investors to include both in their employment
strategies and continues to provide input to the Regional Services Reforms being
facilitated by the Department of Communities.

Industry and Resources Development
The Commission has worked at a strategic level with major industry proponents by
providing regional information, advocacy and assistance. This work has included:
 supporting Sea Farms as it progresses plans and approvals for its proposed
global scale Sea Dragon prawn aquaculture project for which the farm (10,000
hectares of ponds) will be based in the Northern Territory on Legune Station and
the processing plant on the outskirts of Kununurra. Projected employment
comprises 250 post construction jobs split between the farm and processing
plant;
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providing regional information to the UK based international company Airbus in
its decision to base the world leading unmanned, solar powered Zephyr High
Altitude Pseudo Satellite (HAPS) at Wyndham Airport;
working with Northern Minerals Limited (NML) in the pre-production stages of the
Browns Range Project that is based on a high grade deposition of Dysprosium
and Terbium, heavy rare earth elements essential in the manufacture of a range
of electrical items, high-tech magnets and advanced electrical motors used in
hybrid vehicles. NML is committed to delivering strong regional benefits; and
participating in strategies to secure Cruise Ships visits to the Port of Broome.

Developing our Regional Centres
The Kimberley’s settlements are small dynamic hubs of mostly young people from a
range of cultural backgrounds that are well versed in overcoming the challenges of
remoteness that impact on travel, communications, supplies and services and with the
seasonality of industries that are shaped by marked wet and dry seasons. These
attributes have informed the Commission’s regional centre planning and development
work in partnership with Traditional Owners, respective Shires and LandCorp.
Minister MacTiernan has recently signed the Broome Growth Plan, referred to earlier,
that has a foreword in both Yawuru and English. To develop this plan the Commission,
Nyambu Buru Yawuru, the Shire of Broome and LandCorp worked collaboratively to
harness the potential of the Broome Community and ensure that Traditional Owner,
Local Government and State Government aspirations for Broome were aligned.
Importantly, the knowledge gained from this initiative will be used to inform future
growth planning work in the region using a similar collaborative approach.

Infrastructure for Driving Growth
To strengthen regional industry the Commission has placed emphasis on initiatives that
include:
 working with Government and Industry stakeholders to overcome the
complexities of developing Broome Boat Harbour and Marine Infrastructure to
suit recreational, commercial (including tourism and fisheries) and industrial
(including oil and gas) users;
 partnering the lead agency, the Department of Transport, as an observer of the
Steering Group to use the Government’s Election commitment of $1million to reestablish a sustainable Derby to Perth air service; and
 presenting regional information to the lead Government agencies for inclusion in
the State submission to the Commonwealth Regional Telecommunications
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Independent Review Committee, in its review of telecommunications services in
regional, rural and remote parts of Australia.
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Regional Leadership & Development
Readiness
Enhancing the Capability of the
Service Sector
Aboriginal Advancement
Industry & Resources Development
Developing our Regional Centres
Infrastructure for Driving Growth

KDC Strategic Directions

Strategies & Information
2. Diversification of Industries
& Infrastructure

1. Regional Development Policies,

KDC Service Areas 1 & 2

Sustainable Finances
Future Jobs and Skills
Strong Communities
Better Places

Government Goals
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Diagram A - The Commission’s Achievements in 2017/2018 matched against its six Strategic Directions,
two Service Areas and four Government Goals

Actual Results versus Budget Targets
Financial Targets

Total Cost of Services (expense limit)
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive
Income)

2017/18
Target (1)
$000

3,266

2017/18
Actual
$000

4,464

Variation
(2)
$000

1,198 (a)

Net Cost of Services
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive
Income)

3,266

4,443

1,177 (b)

Total Equity
(sourced from Statement of Financial Position)

1,478

1,981

503 (c)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held (sourced
from Statement of Cash Flows)

0

270

270 (d)

226

225

(1)

Approved salary expense level
(1) As specified in the Section 40 estimates.

(2) Further explanations are contained in Note 9.8 ‘Explanatory statement’ to the financial
statements.

(a) The increase in the 2017-18 actual Total cost of services when compared to the
2017-18 target ($1.198 million) is predominantly due to services provided free of
charge ($1.334 million) by DPIRD to support the Commission in the 2017-2018
financial year.
(b) The increase in the 2017-18 actual Net cost of services ($1.177 million) is primarily
attributed to services provided free of charge ($1.334 million) by DPIRD to support
the Commission in the 2017-2018 financial year.
(c) The variation of ($0.503 million) between the target and actual in Total Equity is
attributed to surplus ($0.521 million) for the 2017-2018 financial year.
(d) The variation of ($0.27 million) between the target and actual in the Net
increase/(decrease) in cash held is due a carryover of Royalties for Regions funding
in 2017-2018.
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Working Cash Targets

Agreed Working Cash Limit (at Budget)
Agreed Working Cash Limit (at Actuals)

2017/18
Agreed
Limit
$000

2017/18
Target (1) /
Actual (2)
$000

168

1,72 (e)

163

163

Variation (3)
$000

0

1,004 (f)

(e) The actual operating cash held totals $1.172 million. Specific purpose monies of
$0.79 million were also held by the Commission.
(f) The variation of $1.004 million is predominantly due to specific purpose monies of
$1.026 million held by the Commission.
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3 Significant Issues Impacting the Commission
Current and Emerging Issues and Trends
Significant issues expected to continue impacting the Commission in 2018/2019
include:
 the Kimberley’s young cross cultural population with socio-economic disparity
between Aboriginal and non Aboriginal people;


the need for evidence based planning and development initiatives to assist
the regional community to realise its potential;



the Machinery of Government changes and the potential for alteration of the
Commission’s Operational Structure and Performance Management
Framework;



Capitalising on regional comparative advantages and addressing the
challenges for advancement continue to provide the focus for the
Commission’s strategic activities.

Economic and Social Trends


The Kimberley unemployment rate (8.7%) remains consistently higher than
that of the State (7.8%).



Current strategies designed to improve housing and educational outcomes for
Aboriginal people are combining to assist individuals and their families attain
financial independence and achieve their aspirations.



Land tenure reforms and increasing streamlining of approval processes
encourages investment and business confidence in agriculture.



A focus on diversification assists regional business and industry weather
economic downturns and capture increases in demand for high value
agricultural commodities, resources and tourism products.

Changes in Written Law
There was one change to written law in 2017/2018 that impacted the Commission.
The gazettal of the Regional Development Commissions Amendment Regulations
2017 on 29 August 2017 reduced the number of Members on Regional Development
Commission Boards from ten to seven. The change reduced the numbers of
Members in each of three Board Member categories; Ministerial, Community and
Local Government from three to two of each. Commission Chief Executives remain
as Ex Officio Members of Regional Development Commission Boards.
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Likely Developments & Forecast Results of
Operations
The Commission anticipates that it will continue to play a significant leadership role
in strategic project development in the Kimberley region, working with the Minister
and regional stakeholders on initiatives that include; improving the Local Content in
Government procurement, the Aboriginal Pastoral Participation project designed to
increase viability on Aboriginal pastoral properties, working with Growers to support
and explore new crop developments and continuing to assist steer the Kimberley
Schools Project and the North West Aboriginal Housing Project.
During the last quarter of 2017/2018 three of five KDC based DPIRD vacancies were
filled. It is anticipated that the remaining vacancies will be filled by mid 2018/2019.
This will provide greater capability to facilitate high level outcomes in the region.
It is expected that results of operations will be comparable to those reported this year
against its Key Performance Indicators and considerate of cost of award variations
and increasing on costs.
Importantly, the Commission will continue to operate at a high level in pursuit of
further strategic outcomes for the region, meeting its statutory obligations and
maintaining high internal and external audit results.
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4 Disclosures and Legal Compliance
Opinion of the Auditor General

(Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators)
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance
Financial Statements
Certification of Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
The accompanying financial statements of the Kimberley Development Commission have been prepared
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and the
financial position as at 30 June 2018.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included
in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Jeff Gooding
Chief Executive Officer
31 August 2018

�tfi
Chairman
31 August 2018

Cameron Patterson
Chief Finance Officer
31 August 2018
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Notes

2018

2017

$

$

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses
Total cost of services

3.1
373,432
1,289,313
547,518
3.3
1,525,943
5.1
8,436
9,105
3.3
115,636
272,756
3.2
2,378,819
2,533,421
62__,0_8_2_ _ _2_6___
6,_38_0_
3.3 _ _ _
4,464,348
4,918,493

Income
Revenue
Other revenue

Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Service Appropriation
Services received free of charge
Royalties for Regions - operational funding
Royalties for Regions - grants & other funding
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD
Other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

4.2

4.1
4.1
4.1
4.1

20,611
20,611

84,469
84,469

20,611
4,443,737

84,469
4,834,024

267,000
1,348,770
568,647
2,781,000
4,965,417
521,680

268,000
18,986
1,894,407
2,666,666
4,848,059
14,035

521,680

14,035

See also the 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service'.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2018

2018
$

2017
$

7.1.1
7.1.1
6.1
6.3

938,181
1,022,663
208,930
821
2,170,595

938,181
752,296
117,830
57,949
1,866,256

7.1.1
6.2
5.1

2,919
39,000
34,021
75,940
2,246,535

2,919
39,000
42,457
84,376
1,950,632

6.4
3.1

29,965
234,342
264,307

39,561
406,728
446,289

3.1

1,286
1,286
265,593

45,081
45,081
491,370

1,980,942

1,459,262

145,000
1,835,942
1,980,942

145,000
1,314,262
1,459,262

Notes
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Amounts receivable for services
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Employee related provisions
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee related provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Contributed Equity
Accumulated surplus
TOTAL EQUITY

9.6
9.6

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Page 34

Kimberley Development Commission - 30 June 2018

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 June 2018

Balance at 1 July 2016
Surplus
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period

Notes

Contributed
equity
$
145,000

Accumulated
surplus/
(deficit)
$
1,300,227
14,035

Total
equity
$
1,445,227
14,035

14,035

14,035

Balance at 30 June 2017

145,000

1,314,262

1,459,262

Balance at 1 July 2017
Surplus
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period

145,000

1,314,262
521,680

1,459,262
521,680

521,680

521,680

1,835,942

1,980,942

Balance at 30 June 2018

9.6
145,000

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2018

2018

2017

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Royalties for Regions Fund - operational funding
Royalties for Regions Fund - grants and other fundings
Net cash provided by State Government

267,000
568,647
2,781,000
3,616,647

268,000
1,894,407
2,666,666
4,829,073

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
GST payments on purchases
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses

(591,523)
(155,594)
(115,636)
(261,572)
(2,428,819)
(62,082)

(1,225,188)
(569,041)
(272,756)
(336,917)
(2,533,421)
(266,380)

Receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash used in operating activities

6,914
244,761
17,271
3,346,280
)
(

11,216
246,617
57,035
4,888,835
)
(

270,367
1,693,396

(59,762)
1,753,158

1,963,763

1,693,396

Notes

7.1

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

7.1

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 1. Basis of preparation
The Commission is a WA Government entity and is controlled by the State of Western Australia, which is the
ultimate parent. The Commission is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective) and it has no
cash generating units.
A description of the nature of its operations and its principal activities have been included in the 'Overview'
which does not form part of these financial statements.
Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
1)

The Financial Management Act 2006 (FMA)

2)

The Treasurer's Instructions (the Instructions or TI)

3)

Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) including applicable interpretations

4)

Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable for not - for-profit entities have been applied.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's Instructions (the Instructions) take precedence over
AAS. Several AAS are modified by the Instructions to vary application, disclosure format and wording. Where
modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details
of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Basis of preparation
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars applying the accrual basis of accounting and
using the historical cost convention. Certain balances will apply a different measurement basis (such as the
fair value basis). Where this is the case the different measurement basis is disclosed in the associated note.
All values are rounded to the nearest dollar.
Judgements and estimates
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about financial information being
presented. The significant judgements and estimates made in the preparation of these financial statements
are disclosed in the notes where amounts affected by those judgements and/or estimates are disclosed.
Estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires
transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or
prior, to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have
been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned
Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.
The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non
reciprocal.
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2. Agency outputs
How the Commission operates
This section includes information regarding the nature of funding the Commission receives and how this
funding is utilised to achieve the Commission's objectives. This note also provides the distinction between
controlled funding and administered funding:
Agency objectives
Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service

Note
2.1
2.2

2.1 Agency objectives
Vision
The Kimberley aspires to a long-term future transformed into one of the world's most successful and
sustainable regions. The hallmarks of the success will be:
People - a well-housed, highly educated and healthy people enjoying high amenity in sustainable
communities.
Place - a place with outstanding infrastructure, services and governance set within a well-conserved and
iconic natural environment.
Prosperity - shared prosperity arising from the success of the region's main drivers of economic opportunity;
Agriculture, Rangeland Industries, Tourism.
Services
The Agency provides the following services:
Service 1: Regional promotion
The Commission will provide effective regional development policies and strategies together with accurate
and accessible information on the region to facilitate and support the economic and social development of the
region.
Service 2: Industry & Infrastructure
The Commission will identify, co-ordinate and promote through its major strategies the establishment,
improvement and diversification of the region's infrastructure, industries and enterprises.
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322,673

170,880
863,213
363,934
1,779,840
3,177,867
(29,698)

171,520
12,151
1,212,420
1,706,666
3,102,757

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

Income from State Government
Service Appropriation
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Regions - operational funding
Royalties for Regions - other funding

13,191
13,191
2,855,194

Income
Other revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
54,060
54,060
3,132,455

863,840
350,412
5,827
174,564
1,621,389
170,483
3,186,515

250,199
976,604
5,399
74,007
1,522,444
39,732
2,868,385

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses
Total cost of services

2017
$

2018

Regional promotion

$

2.2 Schedule of Income and expenses by service
For the year ended 30 June 2018

199,007

96,120
485,557
204,713
1,001,160
1,787,550

7,420
7,420
1,588,543

43,733

96,480
6,835
681,987
960,000
1,745,302

30,409
30,409
1,701,569

425,473
197,106
3,278
98,192
912,032
95,897
1,731,978

521,680

267,000
1,348,770
568,647
2,781,000
4,965,417

20,611
20,611
4,443,737

373,432
1,525,943
8,436
115,636
2,378,819
62,082
4,464,348

$

$

123,233
549,339
3,037
41,629
856,375
22,350
1,595,963

2018

2017

$

Total

2018

lndusry & Infrastructure
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14,035

268,000
18,986
1,894,407
2,666,666
4,848,059

84,469
84,469
4,834,024

1,289,313
547,518
9,105
272,756
2,533,421
266,380
4,918,493

$

2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
Note 3. Use of our funding
Expenses incurred in the delivery of services
This section provides additional information about how the Commission's funding is applied and the accounting
policies that are relevant for an understanding of the items recognised in the financial statements. The primary
expenses incurred by the Commission in achieving its objectives and the relevant notes are:
Notes
Employee benefits expenses
Employee benefits provisions
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses

2018

$

2017

$

1,289,313
373,432
3.1(a)
451,809
3.1(b)
235,628
2,533,421
2,378,819
3.2
3.3 -----'1,70
_
..:, _8 6_ ,-"- 65_ 4
'- _3,..:, 6_6_1__1,0

3.1(a) Employee benefits expenses

Wages and Salaries (a)
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)
Government regional officers housing expense (c)
Staff travel expense
Other staffing costs

2018

2017

250,828
35,399
12,857
69,403
4,945
373,432

971,549
100,356
73,091
92,876
51,441
1,289,313

$

$

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave
entitlements including superannuation contribution component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB and other eligible funds. During the 2018
financial year the combined amount of $30,299 was paid to GESB (2017: $89,882).
(c) The Commission paid $25,740 (2017: $73,091) to the Department Communities (Housing) under the
Government Regional Officers Housing program.
Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers' compensation insurance, are included at note 12 'Administration
expenses'.
Wages and salaries: Employee expenses include all costs related to employment including wages and salaries,
fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, termination payments and WorkCover premiums.
Termination benefits: Payable when employment is terminated before normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. Termination benefits are
recognised when the Commission is demonstrably committed to terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.
Superannuation: The amount recognised in profit or loss of the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises
employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the GESBs, or other superannuation
funds. The employer contribution paid to the Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) in respect of
the GSS is paid back into the Consolidated Account by the GESB.
GSS (concurrent contributions) is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and
whole-of-government reporting. It is however a defined contribution plan for Commission purposes because the
concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Commission to GESB extinguishes the Commission's
obligations to the related superannuation liability.
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The Commission does not recognise any defined benefit liabilities because it has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay future benefits relating to its employees. The Liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded
GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the
Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Commission to the GESB.
The GESB and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in
accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector
employees vary according to commencement and implementation dates.
3.1(b) Employee benefits provisions
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long
service leave for services rendered up to the reporting date and recorded as an expense during the period the
services are delivered.

Current
Employee benefits provisions
Annual leave (a)
Long service leave (bJ

Other provisions
Employment on-costs (cJ
Total current employee benefits provisions
Non-current
Employee benefits provisions
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (cJ
Total non-current employee benefits provisions
Total employee benefits provisions

2018
$

2017
$

120,253
110,932
231,185

193,899
207,414
401,313

3,157
234,342

5,415
406,728

1,269

44,474

17
1,286
235,628

607
45,081
451,809

(a) Annual leave liabilities: Classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period..Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected
to occur as follows:
2017
2018
$
$
37,734
67,734
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
126,165
82,519
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
120,253
193,899
The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to be made in relation to
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
(b) Long service leave liabilities: Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as
the Commission does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the
Commission has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the
requisite years of service.
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Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period

2018
$
110,932
1,269
112,201

2017
$
207,414
44,474
251,888

The components of the long service leave liabilities are calculated at present value as the Commission does not
expect to wholly settle the amounts within 12 months. The present value is measured taking into account the
present value of expected future payments to be made in relation to services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. These payments are estimated using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement, discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
(c) Employment on-costs: The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of
employment on-costs including workers' compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected
future payments.
Employment on-costs, including workers' compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised
· separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on
costs are included as part of 'Other expenses, Note 3.3 (apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost))'
and are not included as part of the Commission's 'employee benefits expense'. The related liability is included in
'Employment on-costs provision'.

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period
Additional/(reversals of) provisions recognised
Carrying amount at start of period

2018
$

2017
$

6,022
(2,848)
3,174

5,221
801
6,022

Key sources of estimation uncertainty - long service leave
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
Several estimates and assumptions are used in calculating the Commission's long service leave provision. These
include:
•
Expected future salary rates
•
Discount rates
•
Employee retention rates; and
•
Expected future payments
Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave
provision.
Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of long service leave liabilities .is recognised as employee
benefits expense.
3.2 Grants and subsidies

Recurrent

State Government
Local Government
Community
Total grants and subsidies

2018

2017

2,378,819
2,378,819

5,000
443,600
2,084,821
2,533,421

$

$
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Transactions in which the Commission provides goods, services, assets (or extinguishes a liability) or labour to
another party without receiving approximately equal value in return are categorised as 'Grant expenses'. Grants can
either be operating or capital in nature.
Grants can be paid as general purpose grants which refer to grants that are not subject to conditions regarding their
use. Alternatively, they may be paid as specific purpose grants which are paid for a particular purpose and/or have
conditions attached regarding their use.
Grants and other transfers to third parties (other than contribution to owners) are recognised as an expense in the
reporting period in which they are paid or payable. They include transactions such as: grants, subsidies, personal
benefit payments made in cash to individuals, other transfer payments made to public sector agencies, local
government, non-government schools, and community groups.
3.3 Other expenses
2018

2017

Communications
Services and Contracts
Consumables
Support Services provided by DPIRD(a)

14,358
165,549
12,280
1,333,756

43,798
468,447
35,273

Total supplies and services expenses

1,525,943

547,518

Supplies and services

$

$

(a) Support Services provided by DPIRD to support the Commission in the fulfilment of its statutory functions and
obligations und the Regional Development Commission Act 1993. See note 4.1 Income from State Government.

Accommodation expenses

Lease rentals (a)
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities
Total accommodation expenses

2018

2017

$
102,155
600
12,881

$
218,871
6,584
47,301

115,636

272,756

(a) The Commission paid $87,711 (2017: $218,871) to the Department of Finance for accommodation relating to the
Broome and Kununurra Offices.
Administration expenses

2018
$

2017
$

Operating lease fleet vehicles (a)
Repairs and maintenance
Travel - non staff related
Insurances
Advertising
Other administration expenses (b)

13,498
8,960
11,261
5,818
794
21,751

25,302
38,679
32,277
25,606
8,666
135,850

Total administration expenses
Total other expenses

62,082
1,703,661

266 ,380
1,086 ,654

(a) The Commission paid $12,122 (2017: $25,302) to the Department of Finance, State Fleet for vehicle leasing.
(b) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated
with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 3.1 (b) 'Provisions'. Superannuation
contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment
on-costs.
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Supplies and services:

Supplies and services are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying
amounts of any materials held for distribution are expensed when the materials are distributed.
Accommodation expenses:

Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset.
[AASB 117.33]
Electricity and cleaning costs are recognised as expenses as incurred.
Other:

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations.
Employee on-cost includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on costs
liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liabilities is included at Note 3.1 (b)
Employee benefit provision. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee
benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
4. Our funding sources
How we obtain our funding

This section provides additional information about how the Commission obtains its funding and the relevant
accounting policy notes that govern the recognition and measurement of this funding. The primary income received
by the Commission and the relevant notes are:
Notes

2018

2017
$

$

Income from State Government
Other revenue
4.1 Income from State Government

Appropriation received during the period: (al
Service appropriation
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

Services received free of charge: (bl
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
Department of Finance
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development - Support Services
State Solicitor's Office - Legal Services

Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regio�al & Statewide Initiatives - operation funding (a)
Regional Workers Incentives allowance payments (cl
Regional Community Services Fund (dl
Local Projects Local Jobs

4.1
4.2

4,965,417
20,611

4,848,059
84,469

2018
$

2017
$

267,000

1,000
267,000

267,000

268,000

18,986
1,333,757
15,014
1,348,770

18,986

568,647

1,894,407
15,649
2,651,017

2,776,000
5,000
3,349,647
4,965,417

4,561,073
4,848,059

(a) Service appropriations and Regional and Statewide Initiatives received from the Department of Treasury,
fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component only.
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(b) Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as revenue at fair value of the
assets and/or services that can be reliably measured and which would have been purchased if they were not
donated. Contributions of assets or services in the nature of contributions by owners are recognised direct to equity.
(c) The Other Initiatives are sub-funds within the over-arching 'Royalties for Regions Fund'. The fund is committed
to operational costs for the Commission.
d) The Regional Community Services is a sub-fund within the over-arching "Royalties for Regions Fund". The
recurrent funds are committed to programs in WA regional areas.
4.2 Other revenue
2018

2017

14,627
5,984

81,703
2,766

20,611

84,469

$

Recoups of expenditure from various bodies
Sundry Income

Total other income

20,611

$

84,469

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal
of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets.

Gains and losses on the disposal of non-current assets are presented by deducting from the proceeds on disposal
the carrying amount of the asset and related selling expenses. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in
the statement of comprehensive income (from the proceeds of sale).
Selling expenses (e.g. sales commissions netted from agency receipts) are ordinarily immaterial. Where the
amounts are material, additional disclosure is warranted.
Insured non-current assets written-off as a result of an insurable event should be treated as other expenses (write
off of assets destroyed by fire/storm/earthquake etc.). The subsequent insurance recovery is to be treated as other
income when it is received or receivable.
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5. Key assets
Assets the Commission utilises for economic benefit or service potential

This section includes information regarding the key assets the Commission utilises to gain economic benefits or
provide service potential. The section sets out both the key accounting policies and financial information about the
performance of these assets:
2018

Notes

2017

$

$

5.1 ___3_4�,0_2_1___4_2,- 4_5 _7_
42,457
34,021

Property, plant and equipment

Total key assets

5.1 Property, plant and equipment
Year ended 30 June 2017
2017
Carrying amount at start of year

Additions
Disposals (written down value)
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

Office
equipment

Furniture fixture
and fittings

$

Total
$

6,288

45,274

51,562

(1.832)

(7.273)

(9,105}

4,456

38,001

42,457

(1,162}

(7,273)

( 8,436}

$

4,456

38,001

42,457

Year ended 30 June 2018
2018
Carrying amount at start of year

Additions
Disposals (written down value)
Revaluation increments/(decrements}
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

3,294

30,727

34,021

Initial recognition

Items of property, plant and equipment, costing $5,000 or more are measured initially at cost. Where an asset is
acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is valued at its fair value at the date of acquisition. Items of property, plant
and equipment and infrastructure costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the historical cost model is used for the measurement of property,
plant and equipment. All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
5.1.1 Depreciation and impairment
Change for the period

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

Total depreciation for the period

2018

$

8,436

8,436

2017

$

9,105

9,105
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As at 30 June 2018 there were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or infrastructure.

Finite useful lives
All infrastructure, property, plant and equipment having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. The exceptions to
this rule include items under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and investment properties.
Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at rates that allocate the asset's value, less any
estimated residual value, over its estimated useful life. Typical estimated useful lives for the different asset classes
for current and prior years are included in the table below:

Asset
Comouter hardware (a)
Office equipment
Office fit-out

Useful life: vears

3 to 5 vears
5 vears
1 O to 25 vears

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, and adjustments should be made where appropriate.

Impairment
Non-financial assets, including items of property, plant and equipment, are tested for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.
Where an asset measured at cost is written down to its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised
through profit or loss.
Where a previously revalued asset is written down to its recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation
decrement through other comprehensive income.
As the Commission is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the
recoverable amount of regularly revalued specialised assets is anticipated to be materially the same as fair value.

If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in impairment, the carrying amount shall be increased to its
recoverable amount. However this reversal should not increase the asset's carrying amount above what would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset's depreciation is materially understated,
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of
consumption or expiration of the asset's future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from declining
replacement costs.
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6. Other assets and liabilities
This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from the Commission's controlled operations and
includes other assets utilised for economic benefits and liabilities incurred during normal operations:
Note·

Receivables
Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)
Other current assets
Payables
6.1 Receivables

Current
Current Receivables
GST Receivable
Receivables
Total current

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4'

2018

2017
$

$
208,930
39,000
821
29,965

117,830
39,000
57,949

2018

2017

124,425
84,505

86,665
31,165

$

208,930

$

117,830

The Commission does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.
Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less any allowances for uncollectible amounts (i.e.
impairment). The carrying amount of net trade receivables is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within
30 days.

6.2 Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)

Current
Non-Current

2018

$

39,000

39,000

2017

$

39,000

39,000

Amounts receivable for services represent the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in

that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
6.3 Other assets

Current
Prepayments

Total current

2018
$

2017
$

821

57,949

821

57,949

Other non-financial assets include prepayments which represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or
services or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.

Page 48

Kimberley Development Commission - 30 June 2018
6.4 Payables

Current
Trade Payables
Other payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued Salaries
Total current
Balance at end of period

2018
$

2017
$

17,545
336
11,288
796
29,965
29,965

11,950
291
24,614
2,706
39,561
39,561

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Commission becomes obliged to make future payments
as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is
generally within 30 days.
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Accrued salaries
are settled within a fortnight of the reporting period end. The Commission considers the carrying amount of accrued
salaries to be equivalent to its fair value.
The accrued salaries suspense account (See Note 7.1.1 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') consists of
amounts paid annually, from agency appropriations for salaries expense, into a Treasury suspense account to meet
the additional cash outflow for employee salary payments in reporting periods with 27 pay days instead of the normal
26. No interest is received on this account.

7. Financing
This section sets out the material balances and disclosures associated with the financing and cash flows of the
Commission.
Notes
Cash and cash equivalents
7.1
Reconciliation of cash
7.1.1
Reconciliation of operating activities
7.1.2
Commitments
7.2
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
7.2.1
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7.1 Cash and cash equivalents
7 .1.1 Reconciliation of cash

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current
- Community Resource Centre Wyndham
- Kimberley Regional Development Scheme
- Kimberley Capabilities Register
- Royalties for Regions Fund ta,
- Warnum Re-Establishment Taskforce
Total Current
Non-Current
Accrued salaries suspense account lOJ
Total Non-Current
Balance at end of period

2018
$
938,181

2017
$
938,181

75,000
62,975
7,048
708,077
169,563

75,000
72,975
7,048
427,710
169,563

1,022,663

752,296

2,919
2,919

2,919
2,919

1,963,763

1,693,396

(a) Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas.
(b) Funds held in the suspense account used only for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year that
occurs every 11 years.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent)
assets comprise cash on hand.
7.1.2 Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

Net cost of services
Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Doubtful debts expense
Superannuation expense
Services received free of charge
(lncrease)/decrease in assets
Current receivables(a)
Other current assets
Non-current receivables
lncrease/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables(a)
Accrued expenses
Current Provisions
Non-current provisions
Other liabilities
Net GST receipts/(payments)(b)
Chan~e in GST receivables/payables(c)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

2018
$
(4,443,737)

2017
$
(4,834,024)

8,436

9,105

1,348,770

18,986

(53,340)
57,128

(27,434)
(41,416)

(9,596)

(101)

(172,386)
(43,795)

46,516
14,903

(27,863)
(9,897)
(3,346,280)

(79,084)
3,714
(4,888,835)
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(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect
of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.
(b)

This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.

(c)

This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.

The mandatory c1pplication of AASB 2016 - 2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative:
Amendments to AASB 107 imposed disclosure impacts only. The Commission is not exposed to changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

7.2 Commitments
7.2.1 Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
Within 1 year (a)
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years <al

2018

2017

$

$

7,672
8,311
15,983

221,470
140,190

361,660

Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the leave term as this represents the pattern of benefits
derived from the leased properties.
(a) The Commission has lease commitments of $15,983 with the Department of Finance State Fleet, for vehicle
leasing.

8. Risks and Contingencies
This note sets out the key risk management policies and measurement techniques of the Commission.

Note
8.1
8.2.1
8.2.2

Financial risk management
Contingent assets
Contingent liabilities

8.1 Financial risk management
Financial instruments held by the Commission are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables. The Commission has limited exposure to financial risks. The Commission's overall risk
management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

(a) Summary of risks and risk management
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Commission's receivables defaulting on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the Commission.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in
the table at Note 8.1 (c) 'Financial instrument disclosures' and Note 6.1 'Receivables'.
Credit risk associated with the Commission's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts
receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other than government, the Commission trades only with
recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Commission has policies in place to ensure that services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
with the result that the Commission's exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were
no significant concentrations of credit risk.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Commission is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Commission is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.
The Commission has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Commission's income or value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Commission does not trade in foreign
currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks.

(b) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are:

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

(a)

Amounts receivable for services
Total financial assets
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Total financial liability

2018
$

2017
$

938,181
1,025,582

938,181
755,215

84,505
39,000
2,087,268

31,165
39,000
1,763,561

29,965
29,965

39,561
39,561

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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938,181
755,215
31,165
39,000
1,763,561

1,763,561

2,086,100

2,087,268

938,181
755,215
31,165
39,000

938,181
1,025,582
83,337
39,000

$

938,181
1,025,582
84,505
39,000

$

Not past due
Carrying
and not
amount
impaired

$

Up to
3 months

1,168

1,168

3-12
months
$

Past due but not impaired

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the A TO (statutory receivable) .

2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables <•>
Amounts receivable for services

2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a>
Amounts receivable for services

(c) Ageing analysis of financial assets

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

$

1-2
years

$

2-5
years

More than
5 years
$

Impaired
financial
assets
$
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29,965

-

-

29,965

-

2,087,268

938,181
1,025,582
84,505
39,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

$

%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

Variable
interest
rate

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable) .

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Amounts due to the Treasurer

2018
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)
Amounts receivable for services

Fixed
interest
rate

Carrying
amount

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate

Interest rate exposure

29,965

-

29,965

2,087,268

938,181
1,025,582
84,505
39,000

$

NonInterest
bearing

$

$

29,965

-

29,965

-

29,965

2,047,100

2,087,268

29,965

-

938,181
1,025,582
84,505
39,000

938,181
1,025,582
83,337

Upto
3 months

Nominal
amount

-

-

-

1,168

-

1,168

-

$

3-12
months

-

-

-

-

-

39,000

-

-
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-

-

39,000

-

-

-

-

$

$
$

-

More than
5 years

2-5
years

1-2
years

Maturity Dates

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table details the Commission's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal
cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Kimberley Development Commission - 30 June 2018

-

Financial Liabilities
Payables
39,561

39,561

1,763,561

938,181
755,215
31,165
39,000

-

-

-

-

$

Fixed
interest
rate

39 561

39,561

1,763,561

938,181
755,215
31,165
39,000

$

NonInterest
bearing

39,561
39,561

39,561

1,724,561

938,181
755,215
31,165

$

Upto
3 months

39,561

1,763,561

938,181
755,215
31,165
39,000

$

Nominal
amount

-

-

$

3-12
months

Maturity Dates

-

-

-

-

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

2-5
years
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-

-

39,000

39 ,000

-

$

More than
5years

None of the Commission's financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are sensitive to movements in interest rates, hence movements in interest rates have no bottom line impact
on the Commission's surplus or equity.

(e) Interest rate sensitivity analysis

-

-

-

-

-

$

Variable
interest
rate

Interest rate exposure

1-2
years
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Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the A TO (statutory receivable) .

-

-

-

-

$

%

2017
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)
Amounts receivable for services

Carrying
amount

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate

(d) Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Exposure (cont.)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018
8.2 Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the statement of financial position but are disclosed and, if
quantifiable, are measured at nominal value.
Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

8.2.1 Contingent assets
At the reporting date, the Commission has no contingent assets.

8.2.2 Contingent liabilities
At the reporting date, the Commission has no contingent liabilities.

9. Other disclosures
This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or other pronouncements, for the
understanding of this financial report.
Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
Future impact of Australian standards issued not yet operative
Key management personnel
Related parties
Remuneration of auditors
Equity
Supplementary financial information
Explanatory Statement

Notes
9.1
9.2
9.3
9.4
9.5
9.6
9.7
9.8

9.1 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
No events, matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which significantly affected or may significantly
affect the operations of the Commission, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Commission in future financial
years.

9.2 Future impact of Australian standards issued not yet operative
The Agency cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Tl 1101 Application of Australian
Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from Tl 1101. Where applicable, the agency plans to apply
the following Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Operative for
reporting
periods
beginning

AASB9

Financial Instruments

on/after
1 Jan2018

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after
being a_mended by AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9 and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards .
The Commission has assessed that recognition of expected credit losses will
increase the amount of impairment losses recognised as Other expenses in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income by $Nil, and thus have no adverse impact on
the agency's Surplus/(Deficit) for the period.

AASB 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This Standard establishes the principles that the agency shall apply to report useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The
mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2019 after being
amended by AASB 2016-7.

1 Jan 2019
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[The Commission's income is principally derived from appropriations which will be
measured under AASB 1058 and will be unaffected by this change. However, the
agency has not yet determined the potential impact of the Standard on 'User
charges and fees' and 'Sales' revenues. In broad terms, it is anticipated that the .
terms and conditions attached to these revenues will defer revenue recognition until
the agency has discharged its performance obligations.]
AASB 16

Leases

1 Jan 2019

This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value.

[Whilst the impact of AASB 16 has not yet been quantified, the Commission currently
has commitments for $15,983 worth of non-cancel/able operating leases which will
mostly be brought onto the statement of financial position. Interest and amortisation
expense will increase and rental expense will decrease.]
AASB 1058

Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

1 Jan2019

This Standard clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply
to not-for-profit (NFP) entities, more closely reflecting the economic reality of NFP
entity transactions that are not contracts with customers. Timing of income
recognition is dependent on whether such a transaction gives rise to a liability or
other performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service), or a
contribution by owners, related to an asset (such as cash or another asset) received
by an entity. [The agency anticipates that the application will not materially impact
appropriation or untied grant revenues.]
AASB 1059

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

1Jan2019

This Standard addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement (a
type of public private partnership) by a granter that is a public sector entity by
prescribing the accounting for the arrangement from the grantor's perspective.
Timing and measurement for the recognition of a specific asset class occurs on
commencement of the arrangement and the accounting for associated liabilities is
determined by whether the grantee is paid by the granter or users of the public
service provided. [The agency has not identified any public private partnerships
within scope of the Standard.]

AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ansmg from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128,
131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

1 Jan 2018

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 20126 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018. [Other than the exposures to AASB 9 noted
above, the Commission is only insignificantly impacted by the application of the
Standard.]

AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential
amendments to other Standards. [These changes have no impact as Appendix E
has been superseded and the Commission was not permitted to early adopt
AASB 9].

1 Jan 2018

AASB 2014-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

1 Jan 2018

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of
AASB 15. The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by
AASB 2015-8 to 1 January 2018. [The agency has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.]

AASB 2014-7

Amendments

to

Australian

Accounting

Standards

arising

from

AASB 9

1 Jan 2018

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 9
(December 2014). [The agency has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.]
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AASB 2016-3

1 Jan 2018

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Clarifications to AASB 15
This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, timing of recognising revenue from granting a licence, and, provides
further transitional provisions to AASB 15. {The Commission has not yet determined
the application or the potential impact when the deferred AASB 15 becomes
effective from 1 January 2019).

AASB 2016-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities

Australian Implementation

1 Jan 2019

This Standard inserts Australian requirements and authoritative implementation
guidance for not-for-profit entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15. This guidance assists
not-for-profit entities in applying those Standards to particular transactions and other
events. There is no financial impact.
9.3 Key management personnel

The Commission has determined key management personnel to include Chief Executive Officer, members of the accountable
authority, senior officers of the Commission and the Minister that the Commission assists. The Commission does not incur
expenditures to compensate Ministers and those disclosures may be found in the Annual Report on State Finances.
The total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for key management personnel, comprising
members and senior officers of the Commission for the reporting period are presented within the following bands:
Compensation of members of the accountable authority
Compensation band ($)

2018

2017

7

6

2018

2017

0 - 10,000
10,001 - 20,000
50,001 - 60,000
Compensation of senior officers ($)
Compensation band ($)

160,001 - 170,000
210,001 - 220,000
250,001 - 260,000
280,001 - 290,000

$
437,371
40,414

Other long term benefits

$
479,558
39,991
38,786

Total compensation of key management personnel

558,335

515,811

Short term employee benefits
Post employment benefits

38,026

t

As of the 1s July 2017, all Commission's staff were transferred to the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development
(DPIRD), except for the Chief Executive Officer. The disclosure for senior officers compensation represents both the CEO's
employee benefits met by the Commission and the other senior officer's employee benefits now met by DPIRD.
9.4 Related parties

The Commission is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western Australia. In conducting its activities, the
Commission is required to pay various taxes and levies based on the standard terms and conditions that apply to all tax and levy
payers to the State and entities related to State.
Related parties of the agency include:
- all senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled entities;
- all cabinet ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled entities;
- other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies included in the whole of government consolidated
·
financial statements;
- associates and joint ventures, that are included in the whole of government consolidated financial statements; and
- the Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB).
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All related party transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length basis.
Significant transactions with Government-related entities
Significant transactions include:
- staff housing payments to the Department of Communities (Housing) (Note 3.1);
- superannuation payments to GESB (Note 3.1);
- lease rental payments to the Department of Finance (Note 3.3);
- lease payments for vehicles to the Department of Finance State Fleet (Note 3.3);
- contribution for the Harvard Economic Complexity Study to the Department of Primary Industry and Regional Development (Note 3.3);
- service appropriations (Note 4.1);
- services received free of charge from the State Solicitor's Office (Note 4.1);
- services received free of charge from the Department Primary Industry and Regional Development (Note 4.1) ;
- Royalties for Regions Fund (Note 4.1); and
- transfer of leave liability of $221,600 to the Department of Primary Industry and Regional Development;

Material transactions with related parties
The Commission had no material related party transaction with Ministers/senior officers or their close family members or their controlled
(or jointly controlled) entities for disclosure.
9.5 Remuneration of auditors
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
2018
$
31,815

2017
$
31,500

2018
$

2017
$

145,000
145,000

145,000
145,000

Accumulated (deficit)
Balance at start of year
Result for the period
Balance at end of period

1,314,262
521,680
1,835,942

1,300,227
14,035
1,314,262

Total equity at end of period

1,980,942

1,459,262

Auditing the accounts, financial statements controls, and key performance indicators

9.6 Equity

Contributed equity
Balance at start of period
Total contributions by owners
Balance at end of period

9.7 Supplementary financial information
(a) Write-offs
During the financial year $0 (2017: $0) was written off in bad debts and inventory under the authority of:
Kimberley Development Commission.
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Other Comprehensive Income
Total Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Income from State Government
Service appropriation
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Regions - operational funding
Royalties for Regions - grants & other funding
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD

Income
Revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses
Total cost of services

6, i

4, g
5, h

2,c
3, d
e

a
1, b

2,999,000
3,266,000

267,000

3,266,000

2,778,000
42,000
3,266,000

357,000
89,000

521,680

267,000
1,348,770
568,647
2 ,781 ,000
4,965,417
521,680

20,611
20,611
20,611
4,443,737

373,432
1,525,943
8,436
115,636
2 ,378,819
62,082
4,464,348

14,035

268,000
18,986
1,894,407
2,666,666
4,848,059
14,035

84,469
84,469
84,469
4,834,024

1,289,313
547,518
9,105
272,756
2,533,421
266,380
4,918,493

521,680

1,348,770
568,647
(218,000)
1,699,417
521,680

20,611
20,611
20,611
1,177,737

16,432
1,436,943
8,436
115,636
(399,181)
20,082
1,198,348

507,645

(1 ,000)
1,329,784
(1,325,760)
114,334
117,358
507,645

(63,858)
(63,858)
(63,858)
(390,287)

(915,881)
978,425
(669)
(157,120)
(154,602)
(204,298)
(454,145)
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All variances between estimates (original budget) and actual results for 2018, and between the actual results for 2018 and 2017 are shown below. Narratives are provided for
key variations selected from observed major variances, which are generally greater than :
* 5% and $65,320 for the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows; and,
* 5% and $33,800 for the Statement of Financial Position
Variance between Variance between
actual results for
estimated and
Actual
Estimate
Actual
Variance
2018 and 2017
2017
actual
2018
2018
Note
9.8.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income
Income Variances

9.8 Explanatory Statement

1,478,000
1,478,000

11
12

EQUITY
Contributed Equity
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

264,307

213,000

145,000
1,835,942
1,980,942

265,593
1,980,942

1,286
1,286

29,965
234,342

2,919
39,000
34,021
75,940
2,246,535

213,000

213,000
1,477,000

n

m

9
10

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee related provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Employee related provisions
Other
Total Current Liabilities

1,690,000

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Amount receivable for services
Property, Plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

938,181
1,022,663
208,930
821
2,170,595

$

$

938,000
752,000

Actual
2018

Estimate
2018

1,690,000

I

7,j
8, k

Variance
Note

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

9.8.2 Statement of Financial Position
Variances

9.8 Explanatory Statement

145,000
1,314,262
1,459,262

491 ,370
1,459,262

45,081
45,081

446,289

39,561
406,728

2,919
39,000
42,457
84,376
1,950,632

938,181
752,296
117,830
57,949
1,866,256

$

Actual
2017

521 ,680
521,680

(225,777)
521,680

52,593
501,023

145,000
357,942
502,942

(43,795)
(43,795)

(181,982)

(9,596)
(172,386)

(8,436)
!8,436)
295,903

270,367
91 ,100
(57,128)
304,339

$

Variance between
actual results for
2018 and 2017

1,286
1,286

51,307

29,965
21,342

2,919
39,000
34,021
73,021
553,616

181
270,663
208,930
821
480,595

$

Variance between
estimated and
actual
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1,690,000
1,690,000

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

270,367
1,693,396
1,963,763

6,914
244,761
17,271
(3,346,280)

(62 ,082)

(42,000)

(2,778,000)

(591 ,523)
(155,594)
(115,636)
(2,428,819)
(261,572)

(357,000)
(89,000)

2,999,000
3,266,000

267,000
568,647
2,781 ,000
3,616,647

$

$

267,000

Actual
2018

Estimate
2018

(3,266,000)

20

V

15, q
16, r
17, s
18, t
19,u

13,o
14,p

Variance
Note

Receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Utilised as follows :
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Administration expenses

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Royalties for Regions Fund - operational funding
Royalties for Regions Fund - grant & other funding
Net cash provided by State Government

9.8.3 Statement of Cash Flows Variances

9.8 Explanatory Statement

(59,762)
1,753,158
1,693,396

11,216
246,617
57,035
(4,888,835)

(266,380)

(1,225,188)
(569,041)
(272,756)
(2,533,421)
(336,917)

268,000
1,894,407
2,666,666
4,829,073

$

Actual
2017

270,367
3,396
273,763

6,914
244,761
17,271
(80,280)

(20,082)

(234,523)
(66,594)
(115,636)
349,181
(261,572)

330,129
(59,762)
270,367

(4,302)
(1,856)
(39,764)
1,542,555

204,298

633,665
413,447
157,120
104,602
75,345

(1,000)
(1,325,760)
114,334
(1,212,426)

$

$

568,647
(218,000)
350,647

Variance between
actual results for
2018 and 2017

Variance between
estimated and
actual
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Accommodation expenses variance to budget of $115,636 is due to MoG transition of suppliers.

Grants and subsidies expense variance of $399,181 due to the timing of grants payments for Regional Community Services during the 2017-18 financial year.

Resources received free of charge variance of $1,348,770 is a result of not accounting for this item in the 2017-18 budget.

Royalties for Regions (RfR) Fund exceeded estimates by $568,647 due to the additional disbursement of RfR funding from within DPIRD budget to support the
Commission's MoG transition of suppliers to DPIRD.

Royalties for Regions Fund - grant & other funding budget variance of $218,000 due to inclusion of Royalties for Regions Fund - operational funding budget under
this item .

Restricted cash exceeded estimates by $270,663 primarily due to higher carry over funds for Royalties for Regions projects in 2017-18 financial year.

Receivables variance of $208,930 is a result of not accounting for this item in the 2017-18 budget.

Amounts receivable for services - non current variance of $39,000 is a result of not accounting for this item in the 2017-18 budget.

Property, plant and equipment budget variance of $34,021 is a result of not accounting for this item in the 2017-18 budget.

Contributed equity budget variance of $145,000 is due to this budget being combined under the Accumulated surplus/(deficit) item.

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
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Supplies and services expense variance of $1,436,943 is a result of not accounting for services provided free of charge by DPIRD to support the Commission in
the 2017-18 financial year, in the budget.

1

Major Estimates and Actuals (2018) Variance Narratives

A further budget variance is the result of not accounting for the value of services provided free of charge by DPIRD in the Commission's original budget. This
support service is recognised as expenditure incurred by the Commission representing full cost of service by the Statutory Authority.

practise due to the timing difference of transferring supplier invoicing arrangements from the Commission to DPIRD, from the 1st of July MoG change, variances to
budgets have occurred against actual expenditure.

For the 2017/18 the Commission's Section 40 budget was set to only reflect board related costs, CEO salaries and travel costs, legacy projects and grants. In

From the 1st of July 2017 as part of the recent Machinery of Government (MoG) changes, all Regional Development Commissions (RDCs) employees were
transferred to Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) except for the Chief Executive Officers (CEOs). Under this new arrangement
DPIRD provides Kimberley Development Commission with the necessary supplies and services to support the Accountable Authority of the Commission in the
fulfilment of its statutory functions and obligations under the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993 .

Kimberley Development Commission - 30 June 2018

Royalties for Regions Fund - operational funding exceeded estimates by $568,647 due to the additional disbursement of RfR funding from within DPIRD budget to
support the Commission's MoG transition of suppliers to DPIRD.

Royalties for Regions Fund - grant & other funding budget variance of $218,000 due to inclusion of Royalties for Regions Fund - operational funding budget under
this item.

Employee benefits payments variance of $234,523 due to transfer of leave liability balances from the Commission to DPIRD under Tl 520.

Supplies and services payments variance of $66,594 is due to the MoG transition of suppliers.

Accommodation payments variance of $115,636 is due to the MoG transition of suppliers.

Grants and subsidies payments underspent by $349, 181 due to the timing of grants payments for Regional Community Services during the 2017-18 financial year.

GST payments on purchases exceeded estimates by $261,572 is a result of not accounting for this item in the 2017-18 budget.

GST receipts from the taxation authority exceeded estimates by $244,761 is a result of not accounting for this item in the 2017-18 budget.

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Supplies and services increased by $978,425 due to services provided free of charge from DPIRD in 2017-18 financial year.

Accommodation expenses decreased by $157,120 due to the new funding arrangement from the MoG changes and the transfer of lease from the Commission to
DPIRD.

Grants and subsidies expense decreased by $154,602 due to increase in grants expenditure related to Local Projects Local Jobs project in the 2016-17 financial
year.

Administration expenses decreased by $204,298 to due to MoG transition of suppliers to DPIRD.

Other revenue decreased by $63,858 to due to MoG transition of debtors to DPIRD.

B

C

D

E

F
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Employee benefits expense decreased by $915,881 due to the Machinery of Government (MoG) changes and the transfer of the Commission's employees to
DPIRD as of 1st of July 2017.

A

Major Actuals (2018) and Comparative (2017) Variance Narratives

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) budget variance of $357,942 is due to inclusion of Contributed equity budget under this item .
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Royalties for Regions - operational funding decreased by $1,325,760 due to new funding arrangements from the MoG changes and the transfer of RfR Operational
fundings to DPIRD in 2017-18 financial year.

H

Receivables increased by $91,100 due to higher taxable purchases at the end of 2017-18 financial year.

Other current assets decreased by $57,128 due to higher prepayments in 2016-17 financial year.

Employee related provisions decreased by $172,386 due to transfer of leave liability balances from the Commission to DPIRD.

Employee related provisions decreased by $43,795 due to transfer of leave liability balances from the Commission to DPIRD.

Royalties for Regions Fund - operational funding decreased by $1,325,760 due to new funding arrangements from the MoG changes and the transfer of RfR
Operational fundings to DPIRD in 2017-18 financial year.

Royalties for Regions Fund - grant & other funding increased by $114,334 due to higher fundings for Regional Grants Scheme projects in 2017-18 financial year.

Employee benefits decreased by $633,665 due to the Machinery of Government (MoG) changes and the transfer of the Commission's employees to DPIRD as of
1st of July 2017.

K

L

M

N

0

P

Q

Accommodation decreased by $157,120 due to the MoG transition and the transfer of lease from the Commission to DPIRD.

Grants and subsidies decreased by $104,602 due to higher in grant payments related to Local Projects Local Jobs project in the 2016-17 financial year.

GST payments on purchases decrease by $75,345 due to the MoG transition taxable invoices payments transferred from the Commission to DPIRD.

Administration expenses decreased by $204,297 due to MoG transition and the transfer of expenditure obligations from the Commission to DPIRD as of 1 July
2017.
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st

Supplies and services decreased by $413,445 due to the MoG transition and the transfer of expenditure obligations from the Commission to DPIRD as of 1 July
2017.

R

st

Restricted cash and cash equivalent increased by $270,367 due to higher carry over funds of Royalties for Regions projects in 2017-18 financial year.

J

Royalties for Regions Fund - grant & other funding increased by $114,334 due to higher fundings for Regional Grants Scheme projects in 2017-18 financial year.

Resources received free of charge increased by $1,329,784 due the MoG changes and the support services provided from DPIRD

G
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Key Performance Indicators
KIMBERLEY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
CERTIFICATION OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant
and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Kimberley Development Commission's
performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Commission for the financial year
ended 30 June 2018.

�(f(f

Chairperson
Kimberley Development Commission
Date: 31 August 2018

Jeff Gooding, PSM, JP
Chief Executive Officer
Kimberley Development Commission
Date: 31 August 2018
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Key Performance Indicators
Performance management enhances the transparency and accountability of the
Commission and enables its service delivery to be readily assessed as it works to
achieve desired outcomes that are consistent with its statutory responsibilities and
high level government goals (described in Section 1).
The desired outcome from the Commission’s activities is:
“An environment conducive to the balanced economic and social development
of the Kimberley Region.”
Accordingly, the Commission delivers two major services to its customers:
 Policies, strategies, plans and regional promotion; and
 Industry and infrastructure identification, coordination and development
Since the Machinery of Government changes on 1 July 2017, the Commission’s
access to resources has been divided into those reported under Section 40 of the
Financial Management Act 2006 (that is; funds allocated to cover the expenses and
operations of the Board and Chief Executive of the Commission including grants
programs) and the DPIRD controlled budget covering the staff, assets and
operations transferred to DPIRD and provided for the day to day management of the
Chief Executive under agreement with the DPIRD Director General.
As a result of the MOG changes the Department of Treasury has advised that the
Commission no longer requires a Resource Agreement. To ensure compliance with
Treasurer’s Instructions 904 and 903(8), the Commission has maintained its key
performance indicators (efficiency and effectiveness) to clearly measure its
performance and allow comparison with that of previous years. Readers should note
that this approach includes the contribution and hours worked of DPIRD employees
based with the Commission.
A discussion of actual results against budget targets for both financial and nonfinancial indicators and comparative information for the current and previous four
reporting years is provided.
Key Performance Indicator of Effectiveness – Customer Survey
Each year to assess its level of customer service and achievement against its key
Performance Indicator of Effectiveness, the Commission engages an independent
communications/research business to undertake an annual customer survey.
Customer satisfaction is measured against a range of elements of the Commission’s
service, including the effectiveness of the Commission in achieving seven different
outcomes through the delivery of services.
Advantage Communications was engaged to complete the customer survey on the
Commission’s behalf for the 2017/2018 financial year. The same survey was used as
previous years to allow for comparative analysis. For the second year, the survey
was sent out by e-mail instead of by post as previously.

Page 67

Respondent Profile
This year’s customer survey was completed by 110 respondents with 44% from the
Perth metropolitan area, 51% from regional Western Australia and 5% from
interstate. The Commission provided Advantage Communications with a list of 150
clients of which the sample group of 110 provides a maximum survey error of +/4.84% at the 95% confidence level.
The respondent group comprised 46% from the State Government Sector of
Western Australia, 27% from the Private Sector, 16% from Community
Organisations, 3% from the Commonwealth Government, 5% from Local
Government and 3% from not for profit organisations. Respondents were also
categorised according to industry, with the largest percentages working in
Government/public administration (32%), community services (12%) and commerce
(15%).
The respondents had varying levels of contact with the Commission; 18% had
weekly, 44% had monthly, 33% half yearly and 6% annually.
Effectiveness Indicator 1
The Kimberley Development Commission is effective and makes a positive
contribution to economic and social development in the Kimberley
This year’s survey results attest to the Commission’s continuing perceived
effectiveness of its contribution toward the economic and social development of the
Kimberley. The overall results for the last five years indicated a trend in above target
performance in this area.
Survey Results
Strongly
Agree
(%)

Agree
(%)

Disagree
(%)

Strongly
Disagree
(%)

Don’t
Know
(%)

Total
(%)

2013/14

39

57

0

0

4

100

2014/15

50

44

2

0

4

100

2015/16

32

61

2

0

5

100

2016/17

34

57

1

0

8

100

2017/18

26

66

3

1

4

100
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Results Against Target
Strongly
Agree (%)

Agree (%)

Total %

Target %

Target Result

2013/14

39

57

96

90

Exceeded

2014/15

50

44

94

90

Exceeded

2015/16

32

61

93

90

Exceeded

2016/17

34

57

91

90

Exceeded

2017/18

26

66

92

91

Exceeded

Effectiveness Indicator 2
The extent to which the Commission is assessed by its clients as a reliable and
accessible source of information and advice on the Kimberley region and regional
development issues.
This year’s results, similarly to the last four years, provided in the table below,
indicate the Commission’s stakeholders continuing high level of satisfaction with it as
a reliable source of information and advice on regional development issues.
Survey Result
Strongly
Agree
(%)

Agree
(%)

Disagree
(%)

Strongly
Disagree
(%)

Don’t
Know
(%)

Total
(%)

2013/14

43

53

3

0

1

100

2014/15

51

41

5

0

3

100

2015/16

36

57

1

0

6

100

2016/17

34

58

1

0

7

100

2017/18

36

55

4

1

4

100
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Results Against Target
Strongly
Agree (%)

Agree (%)

Total %

Target %

2013/14

43

53

96

90

Target
Result
Exceeded

2014/15

51

41

92

90

Exceeded

2015/16

36

57

93

90

Exceeded

2016/17

34

58

92

90

Exceeded

2017/18

36

55

91

92

1% below

Key Performance Indicators of Efficiency
The Commission’s efficiency indicators for its services are calculated by the cost of
the projects divided by the number of project hours allocated by staff. To calculate
the cost per project hour, grant income and expenditure are deducted from the Total
Operating Cost. Using hours spent on each service, a ratio to total hours is
calculated and this ratio then determines the Total Operating Cost for each service.
Corporate service hours are not included in project hours.
Efficiency Indicators
Service 1: Policies, strategies, plans and regional promotion
2017/18
Net Operating Cost
Number of Project
Hours
Cost per Project
Hour

Service 2:
development

2016/17

2015/2016

2014/15

2013/14

1,330,181

1520,954

1,488,408

1,258,056

1,754,597

4,733

6,349

6,545

6,062

7,520

$281

$240

$227

$208

$233

Industry and infrastructure identification, coordination and

2017/18
Net Operating Cost
Number of Project
Hours
Cost per Project
Hour

2016/17

2015/2016

2014/15

2013/14

734,737

779,649

772,114

988,473

751,970

2,659

3,434

3,613

4,748

3,271

$276

$227

$214

$208

$230

Throughout 2017/2018 the Commission provide a high level responsive service and
in addition to continuing to support major strategic projects that it had
conceptualised; Kimberley Schools Project, North West Aboriginal Housing and
Broome ChinaTown redevelopment it also committed resources to new strategic

Page 70

projects including; Biodiscovery and Native Food Industry and Aboriginal Pastoral
Participation projects.
Simultaneously, its DPIRD staff complement was reduced by attrition and a voluntary
severance to 4 FTE (in December 2017 until March 2018 when two of five vacancies
were filled. The continuing three vacancies contributed to the decrease from
2016/2017 in Service 1 and 2 hours of -1616 and -775 respectively. The variation
from target in cost of both Service 1 and 2 hours of +$16 and +$23 respectively, is
attributed to incremental salary increases and the continuing dependence on the
Commission’s most senior staff to progress the high level activities described above.

Summary of Key Performance Indicators
This summary, similarly to last year illustrates the Commission’s commitment and
continuing ability to deliver effective and efficient services in a complex, crosscultural operating environment.
1.

Comparison of actual results against targets for effectiveness indicators.
2017/2018
Target

2017/2018
Result

91%

92%

91%

92%

Provides a reliable source of
information and advice.

92%

91%

Is an accessible source of
information and advice.

92%

91%

Delivers effective activities in
assisting economic and social
development.
Makes a positive contribution to
economic
and
social
development in the Kimberley

Reason for Significant Variation
between Target and Result

These results continue the trend of
the previous four years in the
Commission’s ability to deliver
effective services and meet raised
targets.

2. Comparison of actual results against targets for efficiency indicators.
2017/2018
Target

2017/2018
Result

Average cost per project hour

$265

$281

Service 2: Industry and
infrastructure identification,
coordination
and
development
Average cost per project hour

$253

$276

Service
1:
Policies,
strategies, plans and regional
promotion

Reason for Significant Variation
between Target and Result

The variation between target and
result is attributed to the continued
dependency on the Commission’s
most Senior Officers during the year
in progressing high level strategic
work.
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Annual Estimates 2018/2019
In accordance with Treasurers Instruction 953, the annual estimates for the
2018/2019 year are hereby included in the 2017/2018 Annual Report. These
estimates do not form part of the 2017/2018 financial statements and are not subject
to audit.
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Ministerial Directions
No Ministerial directives were received by the Commission during the financial year.

Other Financial Disclosures
Pricing policies of services provided
The Commission has not rendered any goods or services in the last financial year for
which a charge has been required.

Capital Works
No capital projects were commenced, underway or completed in 2017/2018.

Employment and Industrial Relations
Staff Profile
Staff Employed
Full-time permanent
Full-time contract
Part-time measured
on FTE basis
Positions vacant

2013
6
1
0.8

2014
4
1
0.8

2015
3
4
0.8

2016
3
4
0.6

2017
3
4
0.6

2018
0
1
0

4

2

1

1

1

0

Total staff employed

11.8

5.8

7.8

7.6

7.6

1

Since the disposition of the Commission’s employees to the newly established
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development (DPIRD) on 1 July
2017, the Commission has retained one employee, the Chief Executive. At 30 June
2018 six DPIRD employees were based with the Commission occupying a total of
5.6 FTE.
Professional (Staff) Development
Further to the disposition of its employees to DPIRD, the Commission has continued
to be committed to advancing their skills to maintain its high level and diverse skills
base, understanding of the Kimberley region and of regional development in a
remote operating environment. In addition these employees now have access to
DPIRD online learning opportunities.
Worker’s Compensation
The Commission received no Worker’s Compensation Claims in 2017/2018.
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Governance Disclosures
Board and Committee Remuneration
(Annual Reporting Framework 2017/2018 reporting year)

As required, the Commission provides this report on the individual and aggregate
costs of remunerating all positions on its Boards and Committees as described in
Premier’s Circular 2017/08 – State Government Boards and Committees in
reference to those which appear in the Register published by the Department of
Premier and Cabinet. The Commission’s Board Members are also entitled to claim a
travel allowance that is not included in this information.
Remuneration by Board Position for 2017/2018 (including Superannuation)
Position

Name

Type of
remuneration

Period of
membership

Chair
Deputy Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
CEO

Michael McConachy
Ian Trust
Malcolm Edwards
Eunice Yu
Robert Boshammer
Elsia Archer
Ron Johnston
James Brown
Jeff Gooding

Annual
Annual
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Not eligible
Total costs

01/07/17 to 30/06/18
01/07/17 to 30/06/18
01/07/17 to 17/10/17
01/07/17 to 30/06/18
01/07/17 to 30/06/18
01/07/17 to 18/10/17
01/07/17 to 18/10/17
01/07/17 to 30/06/18
01/07/17 to 30/06/18

Gross/Actual
Remuneration
$
51,573.34
6,339.97
882.57
882.57
882.57
882.57
61,443.59

Contracts with Senior Officers
At the date of reporting:
 the Chairperson of the Commission’s Board, Michael McConachy, had
interests in one firm, Freshwater East Kimberley Apartments, of which he is
the Managing Director, that during the 2017/2018 financial year had provided
a service for payment on two separate occasions to the Commission.
 no other Senior Officers, or firms of which Senior Officers are Members or
entities in which Senior Officers have substantial interests, had interests in
existing or proposed contracts with the Commission other than normal
contracts of employment of service.
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Insurance premiums paid to Indemnify members of the Board
On the 8 August 2017, $6,399.80 (inc. GST) was paid, via RiskCover, to indemnify
all Board Members and Senior Officers, as listed in Section 1 Overview of this report,
against a liability incurred under sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory Corporations
(Liability of Directors) Act 1996.

Unauthorised Use of Credit Cards
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instructions TI 321 “Credit Cards – Authorised Use”
we report that there has been no unauthorised use of the Commission’s Credit Cards
in 2017/2018 by the Commission’s Board or Chief Executive.

Other Legal Requirements
This section of the Annual Report provides a summary of the Commission’s
compliance with legislation other than the Financial Management Act 2006, Financial
Management Regulations 2007 and the Treasurer’s Instructions.

Advertising
(The Electoral Act 1907, Section 175ZE)

The Commission incurred the following expenditure in advertising, market research,
polling, direct mail and media advertising:
1. Total expenditure for 2017/2018 was $1,653.66
2. Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:
Class

Advertising agencies
Market research organisations
Polling organisations
Direct mail organisations
Media advertising organisations

Class
costs ($)
1653.66
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Agencies

Agency
costs ($)

Lizart Productions
Derby Visitor’s Centre

493.66
1160.00
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
(Disability Services Act 1993, s29 and Schedule 3 of the Disability Services
Regulations 2004))
The Commission’s initiatives are provided against each of the seven desired
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan outcomes:
1. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to
access the services of and any events organised by, a public authority.
The Commission has continued to be adaptable in its service provision to meet
the needs of people with disabilities and ensure that they are able to attend
relevant events organised by the Commission.
2. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to
access the buildings and other facilities of a public authority.
During the year, people with disabilities have been supported in accessing the
Commission’s buildings and facilities.
3. People with disabilities receive information from a public authority in a
format that will enable them to access the information as readily as other
people are able to access it.
The Commission continually strives to be responsive to the needs of its diverse
clientele and offers its information in a range of formats.
4. People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from
the staff of a public authority as other people receive from the staff of that
public authority.
People with disabilities are respected by the Commission’s staff and offered the
same quality of service as people without disabilities.
5. People with disabilities receive the same opportunities as other people to
make complaints to a public authority.
The Commission has continued to ensure that current complaint mechanisms are
accessible for people with disabilities in alternate formats where required.
6. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to
participate in any public consultation by a public authority.
During the year, the Commission has continued to be flexible in its approach to
ensure people with our without a disability, that wish to participate in any public
consultation are able to do so.
7. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people
regarding employment practices (recruitment and retention) by a public
authority.
Although the Commission does not currently employ anyone with a disability, its
recruitment and retention practices are fair and unbiased.
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Reporting on Recordkeeping Plans
(State Records Act 2000 and State Records Commission Standard 2, Principle 6)
In accordance with the State Records Commission, Standard 2, Principle 6 Compliance, the Commission reports the following:
The efficiency and effectiveness of the Commission’s recordkeeping systems
are evaluated not less than once every five years.
The Commission undertook an evaluation of its recordkeeping system prior to
preparing its third Recordkeeping Plan in May 2014. Both were submitted to the
State Records Office.
The organisation conducts a recordkeeping training program.
A formalised Recordkeeping Training program exists and supports ongoing informal
staff development about recordkeeping across the Commission’s three offices. All
staff are updated and new staff orientated to the Recordkeeping Plan 2014 and
associated Recordkeeping Policies.
The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping training program is
reviewed from time to time.
Further to the implementation of the Commission’s Recordkeeping Plan in 2014 the
Commission has reviewed the efficiency and effectiveness of its recordkeeping
program and found it to be suitable to maintain pending the anticipated transition to
the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development recordkeeping
system.
The Commission’s induction program addresses employee roles and
responsibilities in regard to their compliance with the organisations
recordkeeping plan.
The Commission’s induction program and induction manual clarify the roles of
DPIRD employees based with the Commission in regards to compliance with the
Commission’s Recordkeeping plan.
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Government Policy Requirements
Substantive Equality
(Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2015-01: Implementation of the Policy
Framework for Substantive Equality)
The Commission has no obligation to implement or report against the Policy
Framework for Substantive Equality, however, the Commission, remains committed
to achieving substantive equality in the Kimberley as described elsewhere in this
report.

Occupational Safety and Health
(Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2012-05: Code of Practice: Occupational
Safety and Health in the Western Australian Public Sector)
Statement of the Commission’s commitment to occupational safety and health
and injury management with an emphasis on Executive commitment:
The Commission’s Executive is committed to maintaining a safe working
environment for its Board Members, DPIRD employees and Visitors.
Description of the formal mechanism for consultation with employees on
occupational safety and health matters:
Given the small size of the organisation the mechanism of consultation has
continued to be for the Commission’s Chief Executive and DPIRD employees to
liaise directly with one another on Occupational Safety and Health matters.
Statement of compliance with the injury management requirements of the
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981:
Whilst the Commission has had no Worker’s Compensation or Injury Management
issues to deal with in 2017/2018 it has remained compliant with the Workers’
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981.
Statement confirming that an assessment of the occupational safety and
health management system has been completed (within previous five years):
A self evaluation of the Commission’s Occupational Safety and Health management
system was completed in 2013/2014.
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Report on Occupational Safety, Health & Injury Management Annual
performance for 2017/2018
Actual Results

Results against Target

Measure
2017/2018
Zero (0)

Target
2017/2018
Zero (0)

Lost time injury and/or Zero (0)
disease incidence rate

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Lost time injury and/or Zero (0)
disease severity rate

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Number of fatalities

2016/2017
Zero (0)

Percentage of injured i)
workers returned to work:
i) within 13 weeks
ii) within 26 weeks
ii)

Zero (0) ii) Zero (0) Greater than
injured
injured
or equal to
workers
workers
80% return to
Zero (0) iii) Zero (0) work
within
injured
injured
26 weeks
workers
workers
Percentage of managers 100%
100%
Greater than
trained in occupational
or equal to
safety, health and injury
80%
management
responsibilities

Comment on
Result
Continuing
trend of zero
Continuing
trend of zero
Continuing
trend of zero
Continuing
trend of zero

Due limited
availability of
Manager’s
training in the
Kimberley.

Government Building Training Policy
(Premier’s Circular 2015-02 – Government Building Training Policy)
The Commission has not held any building and construction or civil engineering
contracts in 2017/2018.
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